From: Commissioner, DOT (DOT sponsored)

To: DOT All Staff

Subject: Travel and Hiring Information

Date: Wednesday, March 18, 2020 11:40:34 AM
Attachments: Memo - 03.09.2020 Travel and Hiring.pdf

recruitment request 3-17-2020.pdf
Hiring Freeze Waiver Memo 3-18-2020.pdf

Importance: High

Good morning - The COVID-19 health crisis and the significant drop in the price of oil could be
an economic crisis to Alaska and we need to ensure that we do not contribute to that crisis. It is
important that state government does not shut down.

The announcement on March 9 suspending Out-of-State Travel is a not just a direct response
to the COVID-19 crisis. The Travel Restriction and the Hiring Freeze is an effort to control state
spending in response to the volatility in the price of oil in world markets. The Hiring Freeze will
have significant impacts on the Department and we are actively working on mitigating
measures. Personnel shortages can directly impact the safety of the traveling public and our
ability to conduct many of our major lines of business.

The Hiring Freeze does include a couple of exceptions applicable to DOT&PF, including on-call
non-perms and positions fully funded by federal funds. We’ve also asked for additional hiring
exceptions (blanket hiring waiver) for a number of Mission Critical groups and are waiting for
that approval.

Until that happens, and for any other recruitment requests, I've attached a fillable PDF
recruitment request memo to assist you in keeping our workforce up to the performance levels
we need. Please note there is some detailed information required and a number of approvals.
Take the effort to provide sufficient detail and accuracy to ensure approval.

John MacKinnon

Commissioner


mailto:dot.commissioner@alaska.gov

STATE OF ALASKA

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
MEMORANDUM
DATE: March 9, 2020
TO: All Commissioners
Administrative S s Directors
FROM: Ben Stevens £
Chief of Staf

SUBJECT:  Out-of-State Travel Restriction and Hiring Freeze

With the recent volatility in the global oil markets and the impacts on our State’s financial resources,
prudent management actions must be taken to control spending.

This memorandum announces the immediate suspension of out-of-state travel for ALL employees and
an immediate hiring freeze to reduce the impact on state general funds. This hiring freeze applies to all
positions, except for those that are necessary to protect the health and safety of Alaskans. Departments
may request a waiver from the hiring freeze due to extraordinary circumstances. That process is
outlined below.

The Out-of-State Travel suspension applies to ALL state employees, effective today. Employees
currently out on approved travel shall return under their prior-approved travel schedules.

The hiring freeze applies to:

= All full-time, part-time, non-permanent, and seasonal positions in bargaining units and in the
partially-exempt and exempt service paid for by general funds and other state funds.
Requests to establish new non-permanent positions.

Requests to extend non-permanent positions.

Positions that provide administrative support and maintenance in 24-hour facilities.
Positions partially funded by federal funds.

The hiring freeze does not apply to:

= Positions essential to protect Alaska citizens. This category includes Alaska State Troopers,
corrections and probation officers, airport police and fire officers, airport screening officers,
and employees that provide patient, resident services, and food service at 24-hour institutions.
The following are considered 24-hour institutions:
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Correctional Facilities

Juvenile Justice Facilities
Alaska Military Youth Academy
Pioneer Homes

Alaska Psychiatric Institute
AVTEC

Mt. Edgecumbe High School

O O O O 0O 0O O

o

Positions for which an offer of employment was made prior to March 9, 2019.

Lateral transfers and promotions within the same department.

Range changes in flexibly ranged positions.

Reclassifications within the same job family.

Employees delegated the authority to perform the duties of a vacant position that is assigned a

higher pay range if bargaining unit provisions or regulations provide for compensation.

= The use of on-call non-permanent employees, if only used to perform work essential to protect
the public’s safety or meet other essential state responsibilities.

» Positions fully funded by federal funds. The Division of Personnel must be sent funding
verification from the Commissioner of the requesting department for any new job posting for a
position that is 100 percent federally funded.

The following agencies are strongly encouraged to implement the out-of-state travel restrictions and
hiring freeze as described in this memo:

Alaska Aerospace Development Corporation,

Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education,
Alaska Housing Finance Corporation,

Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority,
Alaska Oil and Gas Conservation Commission,
Commercial Fisheries Entry Commission

Permanent Fund Corporation

Regulatory Commission of Alaska.

Recruitments currently on Workplace Alaska will be open through the stated closing date. A notice to
all applicants will be posted on Workplace Alaska advising applicants of the hiring freeze and stating
that only positions necessary to protect the health and safety of Alaskans, and to meet other essential
state responsibilities, will be filled. A currently posted recruitment will not be extended unless a waiver
has been approved.

Positions providing direct patient or resident services (including food services) or that are essential in
protecting Alaska citizens, but not employed in a 24-hour institution or in one of the exempt job
classifications listed above ARE subject to the hiring freeze, but a waiver may be requested.

If a department believes filling a position is necessary to protect the safety of the public, or meet other
essential state responsibilities, a request for waiver from the hiring freeze must be submitted to OMB.
The waiver request must be submitted in a memorandum addressed to the Chief of Staff and approved
by the department’s Commissioner. The memorandum must include the following information:
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position title, range, ADN, annual personal services cost, and fund source (if CIP Receipts,
identify the source of the CIP Receipts);

the essential results that the person will be responsible for delivering;

the extraordinary circumstances that contribute to why a waiver should be approved; and
how long the position has been vacant.

When a waiver is approved, the department is responsible for providing a copy of it to its HR Manager
in the Division of Personnel.

On behalf of the Governor, please accept his thanks for your cooperation in meeting this challenge.






MEMORANDUM

TO: Ben Stevens, Chief of Staff
Office of the Governor

THRU: Dom Pannone, Admin Services Director
Office of Management and Budget

FROM: John MacKinnon, Commissioner DOT&PF

DATE:
SUBJECT: Recruitment Request for DOT&PF

I am requesting approval to recruit for

Requested Post Date:
Division and Location:
Base Salary:

Total Cost:

Funding Source:

PCN:

Vacancy Date:

Explanation:

(Pleasébe brief andexplainthefollowing - essentiatesultsthatthis personwill beresponsibldor
deliveringandthe extraordinarycircumstancethatcontributeto why a waivershouldbe approvedIf
ClIPreceiptsareused pleasadentify the sourceof the CIP receipts)

Director's Initials:
Commissioner Approval: Date:

FOR OOG/OMB USE ONLY
Office of Management and Budget Review:
O Approved [ Denied — Explanation

Signature: Date:

Governor’s Office Approval:
O Approved [ Denied

Signature: Date:

“Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure.”





		Office of Management and Budget Review: Off

		Approved: Off

		Denied  Explanation: 

		Approved_2: Off

		Denied: Off

		Division and Location: 

		Position: 

		Base Salary: 

		Funding Source: 

		PCN: 

		Date7_af_date: 

		Text8: (Please be brief and explain the following - essential results that this person will be responsible for delivering and the extraordinary circumstances that contribute to why a waiver should be approved. If CIP receipts are used, please identify the source of the CIP receipts)

		Total Cost: 

		Date1_af_date: 

		Date2_af_date: 






MEMORANDUM State of Alaska

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities
Office of the Commissioner

TO: All DOT&PF Staff DATE: March 18, 2020
TELEPHONE NO: (907) 465-3900

SUBJECT: Hiring Freeze and Procedure
For Waivers

On March 9, 2020, we received a directive from the Chief of Staff implementing a hiring freeze. All full-

time, part-time, nonpermanent, and seasonal positions in bargaining units and in the partially-exempt and
exempt service paid for by general funds and other state funds are included in this freeze. In addition, this
freeze also includes any requests to reclassify a position that is not within the same job family, requests to
establish new nonpermanent positions and any requests to extend nonpermanent positions. Exceptions to

the hiring freeze are outlined below.

| Exceptions to the Hiring Freeze ]

The following DOT&PF positions are exempt from the hiring freeze and may go through the normal
recruitment process.
1. Positions that are fully (100%) funded by federal funds (Attach the budget detail report in

Workplace Alaska to your recruitment showing 100% federally funded.)

Positions essential to protect Alaska citizens (Airport Police and Fire Officers)

Lateral transfers and promotions within DOT&PF

Range changes in flexibly ranged positions

Reclassifications within the same job family

Employees delegated the authority to perform the duties of a vacant position that are assigned a

A il aladl |

higher pay range if bargaining unit provisions or regulations provide for compensation
7. The use of on-call nonpermanent employees, if only used to perform work essential to protect the
public’s safety or meet other state responsibilities
8. Preference Placement as outlined by the State Personnel Act and Personnel Rules (Requires HR
Manager Approval):
a. Job Reassignment under the American with Disabilities Act, as amended
b. Placement of an Injured Worker under 2 AAC 07.228
c. Placement of a pregnant employee under 2 AAC 07.226

DOT&PF has a request in to the Chief of Staff asking for blanket approval of specific mission
critical positions. Once the Chief of Staff responds to that request, this memo may be updated.
Until then, if filling a position is necessary to protect the safety of the public or meet other
essential state responsibilities, a request for waiver from the hiring freeze is required.

“Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure.”





rChief of Staff Approval Procedures |

All positions other than the aforementioned exceptions:
1. Prepare Memorandum to Chief of Staff

a. Complete the attached template.
b. Send the Chief of Staff memorandum, with director approval, and budget detail to Shelly
Saviers at: shelly.saviers@alaska.gov
2. Chief of Staff Approvals
a. The Commissioner’s Office and/or Shelly Saviers will notify the hiring manager of the
Chief of Staff approval or denial
b. Approvals must be attached to the requisition

| Human Resource Recruitment Section

Resources
Hiring Manager Toolkit located on the DOT&PF Human Resources Intranet

e Hiring Restriction guidance and FAQ’s
e Recruitment processes for Workplace Alaska and LTC
e Job Posting templates, examples, checklists

Attachments: March 9, 2020 Chief of Staff Memo
Chief of Staff Approval Template

“Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure.”
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